

FILED
U.S. DISTRICT COURT
EASTERN DISTRICT OF LA. g/c

2019 FEB 28 PM 12:12

WILLIAM M. BLODGETT
CLERK

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
EASTERN DISTRICT OF LOUISIANA

INDICTMENT FOR STALKING

FELONY

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA

v.

ALFRED HUMBLES

* CRIMINAL NO.

19-00042

* SECTION:

SECT. 3 MAG. 1

* VIOLATION: 18 U.S.C. § 2261A(2)(B)

*

* * *

The Grand Jury charges that:

COUNT 1
(*Stalking*)

A. AT ALL TIMES MATERIAL HEREIN:

1. The defendant, **ALFRED HUMBLES**, resided in the Eastern District of Louisiana.
2. The victim, Jane Doe, a person whose identity is known to the grand jury, resided in the Southern District of Texas.
3. The victim, Jane Doe, had a previous romantic relationship with defendant, **ALFRED HUMBLES**.
4. John Doe, a person whose identity is known to the grand jury, resided in the Southern District of Texas.

Fee USA
 Process _____
 DkId _____
 CtRmDep _____
 Doc. No. _____

5. John Doe was in a relationship with Jane Doe, after her relationship with defendant, **ALFRED HUMBLES**, ended.
6. Google, Inc. (“Google”) provided electronic mail (“e-mail”) and other electronic communication services to users all over the world.
7. AT&T Wireless (“AT&T”) provided text messaging (“texts”) and other electronic communication services to users all over the world.
8. Facebook, Inc. (“Facebook”) provided social networking and other electronic communication services to users all over the world.
9. On or about November 29, 2018, Jane Doe communicated to the defendant, that she had contacted law enforcement, that the relationship was over, and that he was not to have any contact with her, her family, co-workers, neighbors, etc. Jane Doe also stated that she felt that her life was being threatened and that she was being harassed.

Harassing and Intimidating Communications

10. On or about December 11, 2018, the defendant purchased black roses online that were delivered to the victim’s place of employment.
11. On or about December 13, 2018, the defendant texted the victim and stated “I knew you I knew you werr...I fucking hate you...sorry piece of shit...fuck you...cock sucking whore.”
12. On or about December 13, 2018, the defendant texted the victim and stated “Yall must be together now...tell him to check his messages.”
13. On or about December 13, 2018, the defendant texted the victim and stated “You’re getting another delivery tomorrow you should pay me back for all that...who’s fault is it now --- slim...the plant tomorrow, do me a favor, eat it, choke on it and die.”

14. On or about December 13, 2018, the defendant texted the victim and stated "How would you have felt if I had killed myself...I'm not gonna lie, it crossed my mind.."

15. On or about December 14, 2018, the defendant texted the victim and stated "Why haven't you blocked me, you still love me."

16. On or about December 14, 2018, the defendant texted the victim and stated "Your gonna talk to me.."

17. On or about December 18, 2018, the defendant texted the victim and stated "I hope you die soon so you get more time to enjoy the flames that will engulf you."

18. On or about December 18, 2018, the defendant texted the victim and stated "Maybe I can call ---- at his work. Approximately an hour later, the defendant texted the victim and stated "Found him...that was easy."

19. On or about December 24, 2018, the defendant texted four different phone numbers that he thought belonged to John Doe and stated "----? Read your email."

20. On or about January 1, 2019, the defendant texted to what he thought was John Doe 1's phone number and stated "you do something to --- i swear you won't be able to hide from me...i will smell the pig shit on your breath and find your fat ass and make bacon."

21. On or about January 8, 2019, the defendant sent an email to the victim that stated "I'm gonna bring you and your world crumbling down..I may make some \$ along the way."

22. On or about January 9, 2019, the defendant sent an email to the victim that stated "I can't think of one reason why you should be walking around breathing."

23. On or about January 9, 2019, the defendant sent an email to the victim that stated "tell me...give me one reason why you should be on this earth...one thing that you do or did that grants you that privilege..your better than me, so you should have a whole list..tell me just one."

24. On or about January 15, 2019, the defendant sent an email to the victim that stated "I'm tired of playing.....pick one Either your face gets pistol whipped House burns Fag gets snipped."

25. On or about January 18, 2019, the defendant sent an email to the victim that stated "better warn your fagit...he don't wanna start with. Me..I was raised differently than the 2 of you....I'd be doing everyone a service..ya know what I mean..btw, dont like your hair, makes you look like a whore."

26. On or about January 20, 2019, the defendant sent an email to the victim that stated "I suggest you answer one question before I personally rain hell all over your network....I don't want to know why, just who.... Who turned the statue...BTW I'm not calling anyone else to do my dirty work."

27. On or about January 21, 2019, the defendant sent an email to the victim that stated "House of the rising sun....First ladies....Haavenwood Dr... Tattersall Dr Westwoo dr Lake Salvador 2105 I'm bringing the pain to you personally."

28. On or about January 23, 2019, the defendant sent an email to the victim that stated "is that my water hose...is that the postman with boxer...the pics of your hos mostly in my old houses..tell me why I shouldn't...give me one reason I shouldn't."

29. On or about January 23, 2019, the defendant sent an email to the victim that stated "You still wont give me my money back..I love that you read my email like you know me and don't respond...but you don't know what I'm capable of, and your not untouchable..."

30. On or about January 25, 2019, the defendant sent an email to the victim that stated "That isn't signed ----you are fucked up...in when my pistol is in your mouth and my crew is working your fag over, I bet you will have different story."

31. On or about January 25, 2019, the defendant sent an email to the victim that stated “did you forget I have peeps over there...I know lots...”

32. On or about January 25, 2019, the defendant sent an email to the victim that stated “I'm glad you hate me...gonna make my job easier and pleasurable...I'm gonna be laughing this time...its coming dont worry....when you least expect it.”

33. On or about January 25, 2019, the defendant sent an email to the victim that stated “No wonder you had to quit ----- when they were planning a background check...you just keep your legs open, I'm going to fuck you one last time.”

34. On or about January 26, 2019, the defendant sent an email to the victim that stated “yesterday you sat in defiance and said it's not me....and I guess it wasn't you who called me just to steal my money..you're an evil cunt ...your gonna beg me to stop.”

35. On or about January 28, 2019, the defendant sent an email to the victim that stated “with the information I have...Addresses Aliases Vin numbers It wont take long to put 2 and 2 together.”

B. **THE OFFENSE OF STALKING:**

Beginning in or near November 2018 and continuing until on or about January 31, 2019 in the Eastern District of Louisiana, the defendant, **ALFRED HUMBLES**, with the intent to kill, injure, harass, intimidate, or place under surveillance with intent to kill, injure, harass, or intimidate another person, uses the mail, any interactive computer service or electronic communication service or electronic communication system of interstate commerce, or any other facility of interstate or foreign commerce, specifically, cellular telephone networks, electronic mail, text

messages, and the internet, to engage in a course of conduct that causes, attempts to cause, or would be reasonably expected to cause substantial emotional distress to Jane Doe, all in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 2261A(2)(B).

A TRUE BILL:

FOREPERSON

PETER G. STRASSER
UNITED STATES ATTORNEY



JON M. MAESTRI
Assistant United States Attorney
La. Bar Roll Number 24838

New Orleans, Louisiana
February 28, 2019